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n e e d y o u t o c o m e b a c k f o r a n y r e a s o n ' w e ' l l b e i n t o u c h

t.hrough the U. S. At ' torneyrs Of f  ice '  Thank you very

much.

(ThereuPof l ,  the wi tness was excused'  )

THE COURT: Anot'her witness, Mr ' Mendelsohn?

M S . L I U : Y o u r H o n o r , t h e g o v e r n m e n t c a l ] - s

Wil l iam Zimmerman to the st 'and'

THE COURT: Very wel l '  Thank you, Ms'  L iu '

Good. af ternoon, s i r .  P1ease step up and be sworn'

ThereuPon,

WILLIAM ZIMMERMAN '

having been caI led as a wi tness for and on behal f  of  the

Government, and after having been first duly sworn by

the deputy c lerk,  was examined and test i f ied as fo l lows:

THE CLERK: Please have a seaE.

THE COURT:  Ve rY  we I I .  Ms .  L iu ,  P lease

i nqu i re .

DIREET EXAMINATION

BY MS .  L IU:

o s i r ,  would.  you please state your fuI1 name and

spel1 your name for the record,  p lease?

A  I t r s  W i l I i a m  Z i m m e r m a n  Z - i - m - m - e - r - m - a - n '

O And, sir, where do You work?

A I 'm a  d .e tec t ive  w i th  the  Un i ted  Sta tes  Cap i to l

r : o 1 i c e .
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O How long have you been a detective with the

un i ted  Sta tes  CaPi to I  PoI ice?

A  I ' v e  b e e n  a  d e t e c t i v e  s i n c e  1 9 9 0 .  I r v e  b e e n  o n

the departmenL, i t '  wi l l  be 22 years in May'

o And what are your duties as a deteetive with

the  Un i ted  Sta tes  CaPi to l  Po l i ce?

A cur ren t ly ,  I rm ass igned t ,o  t .he  inves t iga t ions

d. iv is ion  spec i f i ca l l y  the  Threat  Assessment  Sec t ion '

The dut ies and responsibi l i t ies of  the Threat Assessment

Sect ion iS pr imari ly threats against  members of  Congress

but also inappropr iate behavior,  what we cal l  d i rect ions

o f  i n t e r e s t .

O And was that your assignment baek in May of

2003?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m

O  D e t e c t i v e ,  I ' d  t i k e  t o  d i r e c t  y o u r  a t t e n t i o n  t o

May 2LsL 2003, do you remember that  day?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .

O Detect ive,  was there a t ime on that day when

you came into contact with a person who you came to know

as E lena Sassower?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .

o And how was it  that you came into conLact with

M s .  S a s s o w e r ?

A Agent Lippay had been working a case with the

2 0 6
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senator '  s  o f f i ce ,  and had had contac t

And while she was having a conversa,

conversa t ion  w i th  Ms.  Sassower ,  what

is  tha t  Ms.  Sassower  wanted  to  speak

super io r .

As the sergeant was not in at

absence I  become the act ing sergeant,

superv isor  and I  took  the  ca I I .

A And who was it who told you t,hat Ms . sassower

wanted to speak to Agent Lippay's supervisor?

A Agent LiPPaY

O And. what did You d'o next?

A l a s k e d A g e n t L i p p a y f o r a s h o r t i d e , s h o r t

br ief ing on what,  what was i t  about.  she told me that

the ,  Ms.  Sassower  had contac ted  the  senator ' s  o f f i ce  and

had made some statements about coming to the Judiciary

Commit tee and now she wanted to speak to her supervisor '

So  I ,  f  took  the  ca l l

O and did you in f  act  speak with tuts.  Sassower?

A I  d id.  I  ident i f ied mysel f  and asked what the

prob lem was.

O How did you know that the person you were

talk ing to was Elena Sassower?

A  T ,  I  a d d r e s s e d  h e r  a s  M s .

L ippay  to ld  me  i t  was  Ms .  Sassower

wi th  Ms .  Sassower .

Eelephone

was reported to me

to Agent LiPPaY's

tha t  t ime,  in  h is

s o  I  w a s  f i r s t

Sassower and Agent

on the phone. And at

799
2 0 7



L

z

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

1 L

L 2

t-3

l 4

l_5

1 6

T 7

1_B

1 9

2 0

2 L

2 2

2 3

A Az +

2 5

rhe beginning I identif ied myself and she identi

I 'm not sure i f  she actual ly said my name iS

El -ena Sassower ,  buL I  addressed her  aS Ms.  Sassower '

There  was no  ob jec t ion .

O And what did you say to Ms ' Sassower?

A l a s k e d ' M s . S a s s o w e r w h a t , , w h a t t h e p r o b l e m

was,  what  we cou ld  d .o  to  ass is t  her .  Ms.  sassower  a t

th is poinL went on to discuss her v iews about the

jud ic ia ry  in  the  s ta te  o f  New York ,  spee i f i ca l l y  one o f

the judges tha! were coming up to, as being nominated at

a  hear ing .

O Now,  do  you reca I l  Ms.  Sassower 's  tone as  she

was having this d. iscussion with you?

A Ms. Sassower was very passionate about her

issue. She would become not necessar i ly  argumentat ive

but would. want Eo hear exactly what she wanted to hear

fo r ,  a  way o f  exP la in ing  i t .

No matter what I would try to sdY, she wanted

to discuss her v iews and, and nothing else

o Did she express an interest  in coming down to

the Jud. ic iary Commit , tee hear ing?

A She d id .

O And. what. was your response to that?

A That  she 's  cer ta in ly  we lcome to  come to  the

Jud.iciary Commit.tee and t.hat, You know at parts of

-;
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2 0 8



t_

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

9

t-0

1 L

L 2

I J

l 4

1 5

1 5

T 7

1 8

L 9

2 0

2 L

2 2

2 3

z +

2 5

the conversation, and I apologize, i t  was a

t ime on the phone with t t ts.  Sassower of l ,  on

occas ions.  So I  d .on ' t  mean to  jump around '

very long

two  spec i f i c

But  w€,  I  d iscussed tha t  she ,  she  has a r ight  as

to contact,a,  as a eonst i tuent in the State of  New York

a member of  Congress. However,  i t  had come

attent.ion that they had given her a time and

to  tes t i f y  a t  the  hear ing .

to my

she wanted

And as she has a r ight  to request to test i fy at

the hear ing,  the Commit tee and the senators have a r ight

to pick who they want to test i fy,  and she was not chosen

to test i fy and she did not care for  that

O When you say she did not eare for that, what

speci f ieal ly was her response to your te l l ing her or

explaining to her what you just  said on the stand?

A She wou ld  jus t  go  in to  the ,  her  d is l i ke  o r  her

the, the,  her,  the word I  can only th ink of  is

dis l ike about the judic iary in the state of  New York,

speci f ical ly one of  these, the judges that were being

nominated .  I  apo log ize ,  I  don ' t  know h is  name.

O And how long did th is conversat ion last?

A Conservat ivel-y,  I  est imate i t  about an hour '

O How did i t  end?

A I  be t ieve  I  exp la ined to  Ms.  Sassower  tha t  I

had other issues that I  need.ed. to take eare of  .  That 's

801 209
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prett.y much how it ended.

Did there come a t ime at  some point  in the

future when you spoke to Ms. Sassower again?

A Yes.  Aga in ,  a  coup le ,  a  eoup le  hours ,  iL  was a

good amount of t ime but it was later that same day. And

I honest ly don'E remember exact ly i f  Ms. Sassower had

contac ted  the  senator ' s  o f f i ce  aga in  and we had go t ten

word. of  i t ,  how that came to be about-

But that information eame to me. And because

of the problem that she had with Agent Lippay earlier in

the day, I  thought,  i t  best  that  I  cal l  her back to see

what was going on.

O And did You in faet  cal l  her back?

A  r  d i d .

o And what did you say when you called her back?

A We repeated pret ty much what we talked about

ear l ier ,  about her coming to the Judic iary Commit tee and

tha t  she  s t i l I  wanted  to  tes t i fY .

I  t r ied to explain to her again that  she's more

than welcome Lo at tend the commit . tee.  I t .  was an open

commi t tee .  As  long as  there  were  seats  ava i lab le ,  she

was welcome to eome down. In that eonversation, she had

ment ioned. the fact  that  she didn' t  want to be arrested.

O .-Tust let  me stop you r ight  there.  Did you

what was your response when she said that she did not

802
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to be arrested?

when she sa id  she d idn ' t  want  to  be  ar res ted ,  I

to her that  there was no need, want or desire

o f  the  Cap i to l  po l i ce  to  have her  a r res ted '

That it was al-I in her control . That if she

conducted hersel f ,  you know, appropr iately and did

nothing to disrupL the commit tee, she would not be

ar res ted .

And what was her response to that?

She just  repeated the fact '  that  she didn' t  want

to  be  ar res ted .

o How long did th is second conversat ion wi t .h Ms.

Sassower  las t?

A Again eonservat ively,  that  one was a l i t t le

Ionger.  I 'd est imate probably about an hour and l -5

minutes Eo an hour and a hal f .

O How did it end? How did you leave matters when

you stopped speaking with Ms. Sassower?

A We ended pretty much the same way as before,

you know, there was ot,her things t 'o do - Ms - Sassower

referenced t ,hat  she want,ed to br ing some ot,her mater ia l

about some other incidents we had diseussed previously.

I  to ld her I 'd be more than happy i f  she

brings them down, t,hat she coul-d bring t,hem down before

t .he commit tee. Or when she was f  in ished ,  I 'd be more

A
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than look,  I '  d be wi l l ing to look at  whatever documents

she had.

O Did she descr ibe those d.ocuments in any further

de ta i l  ?

A There were about most of it, from what I

understand, was about the judic iary issues that were

going on with the judge and, and her previous vis i ts to

W a s h i n g t o n ,  D . C .

a And can you tel1 the ladies and gentlemen of

the  ju ry  what  Ms.  sassower 's  tone was l i ke  dur ing  the

second conversat ion wi th her?

A Aga in ,  Ms.  Sassower  i s  very  pass ionate  about

what  she does .  She ge ts  to  be  argumenta t ive .  I  ca l l  i t

conversat ion but out of  Ehat hour and a hal f ,  i t  was'

she control led most of  that ,  that  t ime on the phone.

O So af ter  these two phone conversat ions wi th Ms.

Sassower,  d id you receive any further communicat ion f rom

her at any time?

A I  d id.  When I  came to work the fo l lowing

morning, there was a,  I  couldn' t  te l l  you how many pages

i t  was ,  about .  a  ha l f  inch  th ick  wr i ,  fax  f rom Ms.

Sassower that she had faxed the previoug evening.

O When you say t.hat you came to work the next

morning, do you recal l  Lhe date?

A It would have been the 22nd-
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O And in reference to this fax, who was that

addressed to?

A  M y s e l f .

a And what did You do with this fax?

A I  reviewed. i t .  The f i rst  few pages was a typed

Letter stat .ement f  rom Ms. Sassower,  a l i t , t le bi t ,  of  our

conversat ion,  af  her conversat ion wi th Agent Lippay.

And then there was, I  d 'on' t  remember exact ly

how many, it was a large amount of, of pages that were

hand.wri t ten f  rom another woman that wasnrt  Ms .  Sassower.

O And did you do anything as a result of

receiv ing th is fax?

A After I reviewed it and found out there was

nothing of  a threatening nature,  I  just ,  I  added i t  to

A g e n t  L i p p a y ' s  f i l e .

O And so af ter  you received this fax,  d id you at

any t ime see Ms. Sassower or hear f rom her again?

A The next t ime I  spoke with Ms. Sassower,  I  had

got ten  a  ca l l  f rom i t  was  a f te r  her  a r res t .  I  had

got. ten a cal- l -  f rom, pr isoner processing was where

they

O Let me stop you for a minute,  detect ive.

Approximat.ely, when did you next, hear f rom Ms. Sassower?

A I t  wou ld  have a f te r  her  a r res t .

O And do you know when that was?

805 2L3
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A I  don' t  know the exact t ime '

a Do you know what day it was?

A  I t  w a s  t h e  2 2 n d .

a And how was i t  that  you heard f rom Ms. Sassower

on the 22nd?

A I  had gotten three cal ls f rom pr isoner

process ing  in  a  span o f  about  four  minu tes ,  tha t  Ms.

Sassower was asking to speak with me whi le she was down

in  pr isoner  p roeess ing .

O Who cal led you from pr isoner processing?

A The,  I  be l ieve  i t  was  the  ar res t ing  o f f i cer .

There 's  anot .her  o f  f  i ce r  tha t  ass is ts  in  p r isoner

process ing .  I rm sor ry ,  h is  name doesn ' t ' ,  eseapes f r€ ,

and one other of f icer.

O Did you in fact  go down to speak to Ms.

Sassower?

A  r  d i d .

O And what did you say when you saw her?

A I  introduced mysel f  and explained to Ms.

Sassower that  I  was there per her request,  not  in

re la t ion  to  her  a r res t .

At  that  point  in t ime she decided to discuss

that the arrest  was i l legal  and just  those t14>e of

rambl- ings.

O What was her d.emeanor d.uring the t ime you were

g06 2'-4



1_

, 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

t_0

1 1

i 4
L Z

l -3

L 4

1 5

1 5

t 7

1 8

I 9

2 0

2 L

2 2

2 3

z +

2 5

ta lk ing to her in pr isoner processing?

A Argumentat ive,  upset.  She asked i f  I  had

received. a fax that morning that she had sent the

previous evening. I  in fact  to ld her I  d id '

o A n d d i d s h e s a y a n y t h i n g e l s e t o y o u w h i l e y o u

were talk ing to her at  pr isoner processing?

A She did.  She referenced t 'hat ,  You know, that

she had brought documents down for me to review, that

she wanted me to have.

And I  exp ta ined to  her ,  I  sa id  tha t ' s  f ine '

And, you know, she wanted to give them she was pretty

ad,amant that she wanted me to have them '

so whatever, she aetually brought a eardboard

box ful l  of  papers.  I  assume most of  those were the

document.at ion she gave. I  explained to her there's no

way I  could go through al t  that .  she gave me a packet

of papers which was pretty much a eopy of what she had

faxed.

And I  explained'  to her that  I  d idn' t  need i t

because I  a l read.y had i t .  And at  that '  point .  in t ime she

referenced that I  had to take i t  beeause i t  was

diseovery informat ion and that i f  I  wouldn' t  take i t ,

that  I  needed to give i t  to my, to my sergeant '

O And what was Your response to that?

A I ,  I  took i t  and I  to ld '  her f  would give i t  to
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21,5



\

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1-0

1 1

L 2

t_3

l 4

L 5

t 6

t 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 T

2 2

2 3

z +

2 5

my sergeant and what he would do with it was his

b u s i n e s s .

O Did you in fact  g ive i t  to your sergeant?

A  r  d i d .

O Do you know what he did with it?

A  I  h o n e s L l Y  d o n ' t .

O And af ter  th is conversat ion in pr isoner

processirg,  d id you have any further contact  wi th l r ts.

Sassower  a t  a l l?

A Not that I can remember.

O Let  me ask  you th is ,  de tec t ive .  Do you see

anyone in the courtroom whom you recognize to be the

person whom you spoke to in prisoner processing on May

22nd?

A  I  d o .

O Can you point out that person by where that

person is s i t t ing and maybe an art ic le of  c lothing that

that person is wear ing?

A She 's  s i t t ing  over  here  to  my r igh t  w i th  the

b lue  b louse

MS.  L IU:  Your  Honor ,  cou ld  the  record  re f lec t

an  in -eour t  iden t i f i ca t ion  o f  the  de fendant ,  Ms.

Sassower?

THE COURT: Any object ion?

MS .  SASSOWER: No.

808
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THE COURT: Very wel1,  so noted.

B Y  M S  .  L I U :

O Detect ive,  d id you take any notes on your

contae ts  w i th  Ms.  Sassower?

A  I  d i d  n o t .

O And f ina l l y ,  de t ,ec t , i ve ,  le t  me ask  you th is .

Are  you famiL ia r  w i th  the  D i rksen Senate  Of f i ce

Bui ld ing?

A I  am.

O Is  Ehe D i rksen Senate  Of f i ce  Bu i ld ing  par t  o f

the Capitol  grounds?

A Yes,  ma 'am.  The Cap i to l  g rounds are  usua l ly

ident i f ied  as  1s t  S t ree t  to  the  eas t ,  3 rd  S t ree t  to  the

west and three bl-ocks north and south of the Capitol

Bu i ld ing  i t se l - f  .

O And where within those bounds is the Dirksen

Of f i ce  Bu i ld ing  loca ted?

A Within the three-block radius north of  the

c a p i t o l .

O And is  the  D i rksen Bu i ld ing  in  fac t  a  Cap i to l

Bu i ld ing?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .  f t , s  e o n t r o l l e d  b y  t h e  a r c h i t e e t

o f  the  Cap i to l - .

MS. LIU:  Your  Honor ,  I  have noth ing fur ther  on
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THE COURT: Very weI1. Cross-examination?

CROSS -EXAMINATION

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O Detective Zimmerman, although you are the

prosecut ion,  s wi tness, I  a lso subpoenaed you, is that

cor rec t?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .

THE COURT: You maY aPProach.

MS .  SASSOWER: Yes, I  rm sorry.  May I  approach

the  w i tness?

THE COURT:  Yes .

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O The subpoena not only directs your appearanee

but asks that you br ing,  quote,  a l l  documents,  tangible

ob jec ts  and records  re la t ing  to  the  de fendant 's

d. iscovery demands of  August 12t.h,2003, annexed herein

and related. to the defendant,  the Center for  Judic ia l

Accountabi l i ty ,  and defendant 's request to test i fy

before Senale ,fudiciary Committee hearing on May 22nd,

2 0 0 3 .  I s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?

A  T h a t ' s  w h a t  i t  s a Y S ,  Y e s ,  R d ' a m .

O And sure enough, annexed to the subpoena is the

August 12th ,  2003 discovery demand?

A  Y e s ,  m a r  a m .

THE COIIRT: May f see that document please? .
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Thank you. Let the record reflect, that Det,ective

Zimmerman has been provided a copy of a subpoena and

f  our  add i t iona l  pages  da ted  August  12 th ,  2003.  Th is

comprise Defend.ant 's Exhibi t  L7.  Thank you.

BY MS . SASSOWER:

O Have you brought with you any documents,

tang ib le  ob jec ts  o r  records  as  reques ted?

A I  had no  no tes  o f  our  contac t ,  Ms.  Sassower '

O Aceording to your direet testimony, w€ had two

conversat ions?

A At  leas t  two,  Y€s ,  ma I  am.

a And how many hours separated those

conversat ions?

A Exac t ly  how many,  maram,  I  cou ldn ' t  te I l  you .

I t  was a few hours,  i f  my memory serves.

O And cumul-atively, how many hours did we speak

on the , phone?

A ft would be over two hours.

O You have no notes of  those conversat ions?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .

O Is i t  your pract . ice as a det.ect ive to take no

notes when you sPeak to a susPect?

A You weren'  t  a susPect,  Rd I  am.

O A bul- l -et in had already been put out wi th a

photo that you had provided, is that  not correct?
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MS. LIU:  Object ion,  Your  Honor ,  argumentat ive.

THE COtIRT: I '  1I al low i t . .  Please answer the

q u e s t i o n  i f  y o u  k n o w ,  M r . ,  I ' m  s o r r y ,  D e t e c t i v e

Zimmerman.

THE WITNESS: As far as I  know, ma'am, there

was no bul let in put out at  the t ime of  our conversat ion.

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O Are you fami l iar  wi th the subjeet prof i le

prepared by Special Agent LiPPaY?

A  I ' m  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  i E ,  Y e s ,  m a ' a m

O How have you prepared yourself today for your

testimony here? Have you reviewed any documents?

A f  reviewed the case f i le wi th in the last  week.

O Is that  what is known as the jacket '?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .

O Where is t ,hat  jacket?

A  I r m  n o t  t h e  c a s e  a g e n t .

O What doeuments are eontained in the jacket?

A  T h e  j a c k e t  w a s  s u p p l i e d  t o  t h e  U . S .  A t t o r n e y r s

O f f i c e ,  R d ' a m ,  a n d  a l l  c o p i e s  t h e r e i n .  N o t ,  n o t  t h e  o r i ,

I  mean the or ig inal ,  we have the or ig inal  back.  Where

i t  i s  r igh t  now,  ma 'am,  I  don ' t  know.

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  M a y  I ,  I ' d  l i k e  t o  w h e r e  i s

the  sub jec t  p ro f i le?  Your  Honor ,  the  sub jec t  p ro f i le

t.hat

812
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THE COURT: Excuse II I€, Detect ive Zimmerman'

THE WITNESS : ThCTE ATE SOMC.

THE COURT: - - are there other documents up

Ehere?

THE WfTIIIESS: There are doeuments here '

THE COURT: Thank You. Are You making

re ference to  Defendant 's  Exh ib i t '  2?

MS.  SASSOWER:  Yes ,  I  am.

THE COURT: I t  is  here.  Pass that  up.  Thank

you.

again?

MS.  SASSOWER:  Do I  need to  p ro f fe r  th is  once

THE eoURT: They've already Seen it. Would you

like to approach the witness wit,h that?

Ms. SAssoWER: Yes, may I  approach the witness?

THE COURT: VerY well .

BY MS . SASSOWER:

o was this subject  prof i le one of  the documents

in Ehe jacke| Ehat you reviewed in preparat ion for  your

test imony here?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .

O If you read it is it, your contention that'

you put out bul let ins on people who are not suspects?

A I  d id  no t  Put  ou t  a  bu l le t . in ,  maram.

O Capitol  pol ice,  Sergeant Lippay put out a

8 1 3
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bul le t in  on me.

A Not to mY

O For speaking wit ,h me, is that  correct?

A Not Lo my knowledge , rlo, ma I am.

O Would you eare to refresh your recol lect ion

based upon t .he subject  prof i le that  you say you read?

MS .  LIU: Your Honor,  may we aPProach.

THE COURT: Yes.

(Bench Conference)

MS.  L IU:  Your  Honor ,  I  be l - ieve  Ms.  Sassower  i s

trying to impeach Detective Zimmerman with a document

tha t  he  d id  no t  wr i te .  He can ' t  be  impeached w i th  th is

document .

I f  there are any ineonsistencies between his

test imony and Special  Agent Lippay's test imony or

between his test imony and this document which was

prepared by Special  Agent Lippay, f  th ink that 's proper

grounds for argument but not for questioning this

w i tness

MS.  SASSOWER:  He says  he  read iE ,  Your  Honor .

THE COURT: Yes, he read i t  but  he didn' t

prepare i t . .  And the issue here is whether there could

be a direct ,  reading

MS.  SASSOWER:  R igh t .

THE COURT: - -  o f  th is  document  that  he d idn ' t

814  
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prepare.  The jury you're ent i t led to e l ic i t  fur ther

testimony that may be at odds with that document. He

simply cannot test i fy as i f  he had wri t ten the document.

MS .  SASSOWER: OkaY.

fHE COURT: Very well. How are you doing? How

are you doing? Need a break? Very wel l ,  we're gonna

break  in  1 -O minutes .  A l I  r igh t ,  very  we l l - .

(Open Court)

: THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury,

th is is a convenient t ime for a late af ternoon break.

Le t ,  s  b reak  un t i l  4z l5  and we '1 I  come back  and comple te

t .he test imonY.

(ThereuPor, the jury returned to the juryroom)

THE COURT: Very wel I .  Detect ive,  we're gonna

t,ake a break f or 1-O minutes. And so during the course

of  the  in te rmiss ion ,  p lease don ' t  d iscuss  your  tes t imony

with anyone.

TI IE WITNESS: Absolute ly .

THE COURT: fnc lud ing the lawYers.

THE WITNESS:  R igh t .

THE COURT: Thank you.

( T h e r e u p o n ,  t h e  C o u r t  r e e e s s e d  a t  4 : 0 5  p . m . )

(The reupoo ,  t he  Cour t  reconvened  a t  4zL5  p .m. )

THE COURT: Yes .

MR. MENDELSOHN: One quest ion,  Your  Honor .

8 1 5
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' 'CORRECTED PAGEII

THE COURT: Excuse me. Yes '

MR. MENDELSOHN: The government is under Lhe

impression that only Defense Exhibi t  2 has been admit ted

in to  ev idence.

THE COURT: That ' s what, that' s what my notes

ref  l -ect .  There have been several-  exhibi ts that  have

been marked for id.ent. i f icat ion but only one, Exhibi t  2,

has been moved into evidence.

MS. SASSOWER: Can we, how Your Honor,  by

way of inquiry, how do we get the subpoenas into

evidence wit ,h their  request for  documents?

THE COURT : Mr . Mendel sohn -

MR. MENDELSOHN: The government objects to the

int,roduct ion of the subpoena as cumulat ive and

i r re l -evant .  IL 's  apparent  tha t  the  w i tnesses  are  here

tes t i f y ing .  They  have tes t i f ied  ex tens ive ly  on  the

documents that have already been turned over before

t r i a l .

Assuming that the Court  decides to admit  the

subpoenas themselves, we would object  to the

introduct ion of  the at tached discovery let ter ,  but  we

ob jee t  to  the  exh ib i ts  in  the i r  en t i re ty .

THE COURT: Ms. Sassower,  how was the subpoena

go ing  to  ass is t  the  ju ry  in  the i r  de termina t . ion  o f  the

elemenLs of  th is case in a way that has not already been

8 1 6
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establ ished here? No one is denying that they were

compelled to be here pursuant to your subpoena'

And quite frankly, f lo one is denying that there

were records that might be covered by your four-page

let ter .  The test imony has been that everything has been

t u r n e d  o v e r  t o  t h e  U . S .  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f  i c e '

So I  be l ieve  tha t  Mr .  Mende lsohn is  cor rec t '

What werre ta lk ing about is cumulat ive evidenee. The,

the ,  therers  no th ing  a t  i ssue here .  They  have tes t i f ied

as to the,  what was done with the records- They've

test i f ied that  they were here pursuant to your subpoena.

so what would be your prof fer  as to the relevance

of the admission of the actual subpoena?

MS.  SASSOWER:  I t ,  i s  my pos i t ion  s ta ted

repeatedly that  good fai th actual  product, ion has not

been made. I  t .h ink i t  was ref  lected in the test imony of

Detec t ive  L ippay .

Beeause eertainly she reeounted that the loss

of the tape, so-caI}ed, was apparent somewhere in,  I

bel- ieve she said August/September,  somewhere around

there,  or  lat .e summer.

Yet there was no not i f ieat ion of  that  unt i l  as

recent ly as t ,h is past week. The documents were not

del ivered. Any, any responses were not del ivered unt i l

l as t  week.
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so when she speaks about production and a f i le,

and. Detec,  and. Detect ive Zimmerman refers Eo a f i le,

which apparent ly contains the ] -996 arrest  report ,  I  am

a U  a  l o s s .

And apparently, she reviewed some other

informat ion which may or may not be part  of  th is f i le,

f rom wh ich  she der ived  th is  f i c t ion  tha t  I  was  ar res ted

in  1 ,995 f  o r  d is ruPt ive  conduct .

THE COURT: Very weII .  Your prof fer  is noted

for the reeord.  The, I 'm not convinced that the

admission of  t ,he subpoena and the not ice of  product ion

leEter,  dated I  bel ieve Apr i l  L2th,  would be anything

other than cumulat ive evidence and those documents wi l l

not  be received into evidenee in th is ease.

MS . SASSOWER : Very wel- I , Your Honor .

THE COURT: Very weII .  Your object ion is noted

for  t ,he  record .  We '1 I  b r ing  the  ju ry  back  in .

MS .  SASSOWER: Excuse me. Am I  not  eorreet

that an exhibi t  a lso was made of  Ehat fax that  Special

Agent Lippay prepared and sent to Senat,or Cl inton's

o f f i ce  to  Mr .  Or t : -za?

THE COURT: Yourre talking about apparently

Defendant 's  Exh ib i t  7 .  There  was in  fac t ,  i t  was

ident i f ied  by  L ippay .  Mr .  Mende lsohn,  i s  there  any

object ion to th is Exhibi t .  7 being introduced into

2 2 6
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evidenee?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Yes, Your Honor '

THE COURT:  What 's  the  bas is?

MR. MENDELSOHN: The cover page is not

relevant. The two photos on the back pages

M S .  L I U :  Y o u r  H o n o r ,  i f  I  c o u l d ,  I ' 1 I  s p e a k  t o

t .h is .  Th is  cons is ts  o f  the  cover  page and a  buL le t in

that was sent to Special  Agent OrLiza,  who's a member of

Senator  C l in ton 's  p ro tec t ive  de ta i l  as  we l l  as  a

bu l le t in  tha t  was  prepared fo r  Senator  C l in ton 's  o f f i ce .

THE COURT: YCS .

M S .  L I U :  N e i t h e r  S e n a t o r  C l i n t o n ' s  o f f i c e  n o r

her protect ive detai l  were actual ly involved in th is

ar res t .  Th is  i s  no t  re levant .

What has been produced and we produced and

accepted into evidence is the bul l -et in at tached to

Defense Exhibi t  2,  which is the bul let in that  was given

out to the Capitol  pol ice.  We simply fa i l  to see what

the relevance of  th is exhibi t  is .

MS .  SASSOWER: She, Your Honor '

THE COURT:  Jus t  a  minu te  p lease.  Very  we l l .

r  bel ieve the foundat ion was la id by Special  Agent

Lippay that she in fact  prepared this document.

The documenL consists of  three pages. One page

of which is the cover page. The second of  which appears

2 2 7
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to be a bul let in that  was prepared on the weII ,  i t 's

dif f icul t  to say except that  the text  refers to t ,he

h e a r i n g  o n  5 / 2 2 / 0 3 .

F ina l l y ,  the  las t  page,  Page 3 ,  eonta ins  the

photograph that was taken in :-996 and appears to be the

l -996 bu l le t in .  I ' 11  a l low the  in t roduc t ion  o f  these

d.ocuments.  wel-1,  the document,  that  is  DefendanL's

E x h i b i t  7 .  V e r Y  w e l l .

(Thereupon, the jury returned to the courtroom

a t  4 2 2 5  p . m .  )

THE COURT:  Very  we] I .  P lease br ing  Detec t ive

Zimmerman back in.

(Thereupof l ,  the wi tness returned to the wi tness

s tand.  )

THE COURT:  Ms.  Sassower ,  p lease inqu i re .

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O You stated that when you spoke with me on May

21st,  you were not aware that f  was a suspect?

A A suspec t  o f  what ,  Rdram?

O Someone suspected of  harassing and stalk ing

conduct?

A I  don' t  bel- ieve stalk ing was ever used. I  know

Agent Lippay had opened an investigation t 'o f ind out

what was going on. But your term suspect was not used.

O But i t  is ,  is  i t  your normal pract ice and

2 2 8
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proeedure to take notes when you have conversations with

people who might be threatening in some respect to

members of  Congress?

A I f  there is a reason for me to bel ieve that

that subjeet was threatening a member of  Congress, Y€s'

maram,  I  wou ld  cer ta in ly  take  no tes .

O So you had no reason to take not.es of

conversations that you estimate to have taken two and a

half hours eumulatively, is that your statement?

A The informat ion you were supply ing to me, Ms'

Sassower,  was deemed by me not worthy to take notes of  .

O So I  d. id.n ' t  seem too threatening and harassing

to  you.

A Threatening, Do, i ld I am. I coul-d understand why

the staf f  coul-d.  interpret  your act ions as harassi tg,

y € s ,  m a ' a m .

O WeI I ,  what  was harass ing?

A Your  Pass ion .

A Pass ion  is  harass ing .

A The way you were expressing yourself . I coul-d

understand that if you continued to do that on numerous

oeeasions, f eould understand how a reasonable human

being could inLerpret  t .hat  as becoming harassing -

O Wel l - ,  what  was I ,  what  spec i f  i ca l l y  d id  I  say '

what speci f ical ly did I  say that seemed harassing

821 
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beeause i t  was pass ionate? What  d id  I  sd l r  - -

A There was not, there was nothing

O What. was I recounting to You?

A There  was  no t ,h ing  spec i f i c ,  ma 'am '  I t  was  you r

passion and the way you would repeat the Same statements

and the same ideas over and over and over again '

O Do You, in your,  in your direct  test imony you

d. id.  not  ident i fy why speci f ical ly I  wanted to speak to

Special  Agent LiPPaY's suPerior.

Was there some reason ident, i f ied by ser,

special  Agent Lippay or mysel f  as to why I  wanted to

speak with her super ior?

A Exact, ly what that  issue was ,  ma'  am, I  don'  t

remember.

O In preparat ion for  your test imony today, yourve

ident i f ied  you read the  conten ts  o f  th is  jacke t?

A I  rev iewed the  jacke t  w i th in  the  las t  week,

y€s ,  ma 'am.  I  d id  no t  read the  eonten ts  o f  the  jacke t

word-for-word,  cover to cover.

MS.  SASSOWER:  MaY I  o f fe r  ds ,  f o r

i d .en t , i f i ca t i on  De fendan t ' s  8 ,  Exh ib i t  8 ,  t he  39 -page  fax

of  May 21st ,  addressed to Deteet ive Z imm€rman? May I?

May I  approach the wi tness?

THE COURT: You may.

THE WITNESS: Thank You.

230

822



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

L L

t 2

1 3

t 4

1 5

L 5

L 7

1 B

t 9

2 0

2 t

2 2

2 3

z +

, 2 5

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O Do You recognize that document?

A  Y e s ,  m a ' a m .

0  Was,  i s  the  or ig ina l  in  the  f i le?

A The fax?

O  Y e s .

A  I  b e l i e v e  s o ,  Y e s ,  m a ' a m .

O There's a fax t ime stamp on top. What does i t

say?

A  2 1 5 2 .

a  9252.  Okay .  You tes t i f ied  tha t  you  found a

fax and reviewed. a fax on May 22nd, t.he morning of the

Senate Judic iary Commit tee hear ing,  is that  eorreet?

A  Y e s ,  m a t a m .

O You received i t  and you reviewed i t?

A  Y e s ,  m a r a m .

O And the Re clause of  that  fax saYs?

A f  rm sor ry ,  mar  am,  f 'm no t  sure

O What does t,he Re clause saY?

A I  don 'L  know what  tha t  i s .

O R-€ ,  what  i t ,  what  i t  per ta ins  to .  What  was

the subjeet matter of  the fax?

MS .  LIU: Your Honor,  may we aPProach?

THE COURT: Yes .

(Bench Conference)

923 * 
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MS . LIU: Your Honor,  I  obj  ect  t 'o the reading

o f  t h i s  d o c u m e n t .  I t ' s  n o L ,  s h e ' S ,  S h e ' S  a S k e d  h i m  w h a t

the Re clause says. This document has not been

admi t ted  in to  ev idence.  I t ' s  no t  p roper ly  admi t ted .

THE COURT: Okay. The document hasn't been

admit ted.  into evidence. There has been no foundat ion

laid that  he prepared i t , .

MS .  SASSOWER: He did.

THE COTIRT: And in the absence of a foundation

being Iaid,  i t  can, t  be admit ted and he can' t  read from

i t .  You can e l i c i t  tes t imony f rom h im tha t  th is  was the

document that  he reviewed. But as to test i fy ing f rom

spec i f i c  i tems w i th in  the  doeument ,  i t ' s  no t  permi t ted .

MS.  SASSOWER:  A11 r igh t .  WeI I

THE COIIRT: OkaY.

(Open court)  .

MS . SASSOWER: Thank You.

THE COURT: Yes .

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O You test i f ied t .hat  f rom your review, you had

concluded there was nothing threatening about t .h is 39-

page fax, nothing of a threatening nat.ure?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .

O The fax  id .en t i f ies ,  does  i t  no t ,  the  reason why

I wanted to speak to

g24 232
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M S .  L I U :  O b j e c t i o n ,  Y o u r  H o n o r .

MS.  SASSOWER:  Spec ia l  Agent  L ippay ,s

superv isor .

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MS .  SASSOWER:

O Did f  sLate t ,o you why I  wanted t ,o speak with

you as Special  Agent Lippay, s supervisor?

A Ma 'am,  i f  you  d id  te1 l  f i€ ,  I  don ' t  reca l l  what

that reason was.

O Would you take a moment to review again t.he

fax

MS.  L fU:  Ob jec t ion ,  Your  Honor

THE COIIRT: Let,s hear the fu l l  extent of  the

quest ion .  Ms.  Sassower?

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

A To see whether  i t  doesnr t  re f resh  your

reeol lect ion,  orr  the very f i rst  page as to why f ,ve

requested to speak with you.

M S .  L I U :  Y o u r  H o n o r ,  w €  s t i l 1  o b j e c t .

MS .  SASSOWER: Okay.

THE COURT: Very weII ,  overruled. The quest ion

is whether this document. refreshes your reeo,

reco l l -ec t ion .

THE WITNESS:  I rm  t r y ing  to  read  i t  now,  you r

Honor.

825 233



1

2

3

:

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

1l_

t 2

1 3\  - .

1,4

1 5

L 6

l 7

l -B

1_9

2 0

2 I

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

THE COURT: Very well .

THE WITNESS:  f  apo log ize .

MS.  SASSOWER:  AI1  i t  i s  i s  the  f i rs r  page.

THE COURT: yes .

THE WITNESS : yes , rTrd, am.

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

o okay. According to th is fax,  what reason did r

s t a t e ?

MS.  L IU:  Ob jec t ion ,  your  Honor .

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

o rsn' t  i t  t rue that the reason r  wanted to speak

with you, insisted to speak wit ,h you as special  Agent

Lippay's super ior ,  is  because Special  Agent Lippay

ins is ted  to  me tha t  in  Lg96 r  had been ar res ted  fo r

request ing to test i fy at  the senate ,Judic iary commit tee

hearing of ,fune 25th of that year?

A r don't know exactry what Agent Lippay spoke to

you.  But  i f  she  re fe renced the  ar res t  o f  ,96 ,  r  cou ld

understand that r |es , rTld, am.

o Did r  have extensive eonversat ions as to why r

w a s  a r r e s t e d  i n  L 9 9 6 ?

A  Y e s ,  m a t a m .

o Did r  state t .o you emphat ical ly that  r  was not

arrested for request ing to test i fy at  the senate

826 
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Judiciary Committ ,ee hearing?

A That, was your statement, y € s ,  m a r a m .

that I  was arrested?And did you insist

D i d  I  i n s i s t

O For  reques t ing  to  tes t i f y?

A  N o ,  m a r a m .  r

O No. But you heard what I had to sdy, t,hat I

was not arrested for [aving requested. to test i fy at  the

Senate , fud ic ia ry  Commi t tee  hear ing?

A  Y e s ,  m a ' a m .

O Isnr t  i t  a  fac t ,  tha t  you  th rea tened me tha t  i f

r  requested to test i r !  at  the next day,s hear ing of  May

22nd 2003, r  would be arrested simply for  request ing to

t e s t i f y ?

A  N o ,  m a t a m .

a  D idn ' t  I  te I l  you  over  and aga in  tha t  the

precedent of  1996 was that r  was not arrested for

reques t ing  Eo tes t i f y?

A I  don' t  th ink that  was up for debat.e,  f f i€r 'am.

O So you did not warn me or t.hreaten me in any

way that if r came ao[r to washington and requested t.o

testify and the chairman banged his gaveI, wit.hout even

direct ing that r  be arrested, r  wour-d be arrested by

Cap i to l  po l i ce?  
I

MS.  L fU:  Ob jee t ion ,  Your  Honor .

I
I

A
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THE COIIRT: Overruled. Did you understand the

quest ion?

THE WTTNESS: f  be l ieve

THE COURT, l tury 
wel-1,

so,  Your  Honor .

can you answer the

quest ion?

THE WITNESS:  Wha t  I ,  wha t  I  t o l_d  you ,  Ms .
)

sassower, was that i f  you came down and d.isrupt,ed the
I

Committee, you would be arrested.

Did I ""y "J.r that f intended. to disrupt the

Commit tee?

A  S p e c i f i c a l l y ,  r o ,  m a r a m .  ,

O D id  I  say  tha t  l i ke  in  1996,  I  wou ld  mere ly

request to test i fy i f  the presiding ehairman did not

himserf inquire whether there was anyone present who

wish ,  w ished to  t ,es t i f y?

A I  don' t  remember those statements in the way
I

you just  ra ised them, rro,  rTl?ram.

O But you don' t  deny that f  may have said that?

A r  ber ieve you said something to the ef fect ,  of

that  you want,  st . i l l  wanted to come down and test i fy.

And r  bel ieve r  explalned to you in certain t ,erms t .hat .

if you are recognized by t.he chair and are al-lowed to

speak, you mdy, you may do what the chair  d i rects.

However,  |ou cannot disrupt the commit tee. That any

wou ld  be  based on  your  ac t ions .aet ion or anv arrests

828 2 3 6
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O But I did not say that I was intending t,o

d is rup t  the  Commi t tee ,  i s  tha t ,  cor rec t ,?  That ' s  what

y o u ' v e  t . e s t i f i e d  t o .  
I

A That r s eorrJct , rTrd, am. you never gave me a

speci f ic  answer that  you would not t ry to disrupt.

O  A n d  i s n ' t  i t  a  f a c t ,  t h e  c o v e r ,  t h i s  3 9 _ p a g e

fax consist .s of  t ,wo pages ad.dressed to you and the rest

are referred to documents.  would you take a moment

simply to review the page and a hal f?

A I 'm read ing  the  document .

THE COURT:  eues t ion ,  Ms.  Sassower?

MS. SASSOWER: yes. The document does appear

to ref  lect ,  does i t  , r ta,  .  -  -

MS.  L IU:  Ob jec t ion ,  your  Honor

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined.

MS.  SASSOWER:  That  we had a  d iscuss ion
I

MS . Lf U: Obrj ect ion, your Honor .

THE COURT: Sustained.

B Y  M S .  S A S S O W E R :

o You were aware t ,hat  r  f i led a pol ice misconduct
I

eomp la in t  aga ins t  eap l to l  po l i ce  i n  Lgg6 ,  a r i s i ng  f rom

my arrest  f  or  d isordehy conduct ,  were you not?

A Based on your  documentat ionr  |€s,  rT ldram.

o And in  our  phone conversat ionsr  lou were very
l

i n te res ted  in  see ing  tha t  po l i ce  misconduct  compla in t ,
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am I  correct?

A I  to ld  you I ,d  be in terested in  seeing any
I

documents you wanted to show me, maram.

O Okay.  .How n luch  o f  th is  39-page fax  d id  you

read at  the t ime?

A At  what  t ime,  Rdram?

O AL, at  the t . ime that you said you reviewed i t  .
I

on the morning of Mayl 22nd, you got a fax that said not

being arrested, r  d idn' t  want to be arrested..  How much

of that  fax did you read?

A I  rev iewed the  who le  fax ,  maram.
I

a What steps did you take upon reading the fax to

make sure that r was lrot arrested simpl-y for reguesting

to test i fy at  the senate ,Judic iary commit , tee hear ing?

A I  had no  s teps  to  take .

o But you knew that in L996 there was a precedent

tha t  r  wasnrE " r re" t .h  fo r  reques t ing  to  tes t i f y .  F rom

this fax that  you revh-ewed in i ts ent i rety.

A  In  1 ,996 you were  ar res ted .

O But not for  
, - -

A The facts feLr ina that arrest

O Not for  request. ing to test i fy,  r ight?

THE COTIRT: Excuse me, excuse me.

THE wrrNEss: The facts behind that.  arrest  r  d id

not have, and yo.t r"rL wil l ing to bring them to me. And
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r  told you l  d be wi l l ing to review those and any other

documentat ion I
I

BY MS. SASSOWER:

a But you did Inot require me to give you the f i le

of  that  case. capi tJ l  pol ice maintains reeord.s.  you

had herped sergeant Lippay secure a photo of me from my

L996 ar res t ,  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?
I

A That was frdm your fingerprint card and the

photo r 1r€s , ma I am. I
I

O I see. WeIL] ,  1rou certainly coutd have accessed

the documents pertaining to that  arrest  ind.ependent ly to

f ind out why I  was a. fe"ted.

A I  would go J" another f i le i f  I  wanted to f ind

that  out ,  y€s,  ma '  am. I
I

O  W a s n ' t  i t  r e l e v a n t ?

A To what ,  rT ldr ,am?

O To your thrJat to me that f was gonna be

arrested simply for  rbquest ing to test i fy,  even i f  the

chairman did not direct .  That the very fact ,  the very

fact  that  r  would r ise f rom my seat at  an appropr iate

p o i n t ,  - -  |I

MS.  L IU:  Ob!ec t ion ,  your  Honor .

MS.  SASSOWER:  reques t  to  tes t i f y ,  i s  tha t
I

not  what  you to l -d  mee j  rsn ' t  t .ha t  what 's  re f l -ec ted .  in

the fax that  you toldl  meZ
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THE COURT: Just  a minute.

MS. LIU: May we approach, your Honor?

THE COURT : lyou may.

I
(Bench confelrence) .

MS. LfU: VJrrr  Honor,  in the Government,  s

that was an extremely argumentat ive quest, ion.  I t

not  accurate statement of  the test imony.

v iew,

was

contain any

M S .

THE

quest ion .

sus ta ined.

ounse l - ,  p lease

.  V e r y  w e I I .

back tomorrow morning.

I
MS .  SASSOWER:

(open court ) l.

(Thereupofl,  th jury was exeused for the day at

c
I

I
THE COURT: I  I t  certainly didn,t  comply wi th my

I
pr ior  ru l ings that gubst ions should be suecinet and not

opinion ahd get r ight  to the point .

SASSOWER:  Uh-uh,  I  t ry .
I

COURT: It certainly was a compound
I

f t  was argtrmentat ive.  The object ion is

We' re  b rehk ing  fo r  the  day  and we ' I I  eome

THE COURT:

we are going to break

begin very much l ike

Thank you.

4 : 4 5 p . m .  )

THE COURT:

Thank yo

I ' 1 1  t r y .

adies and gent lemen of  the jury,

for  the day. So tomorrow we wi l l

w e  d i d  t o d a y .  B e  r e a d y  a t  9 : 4 5 .

remain.  . fust  leave

Det .ect ivethat  there.
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you ' re  in  the middle,of  your  examinat ion.
I

So p lease dor l , t  d iscuss your  test imony wi th

anyone, neither the J.st imony you,ve already given or

the testimony that vd.r, anticipate you might be required

to g ive.  very  wel l .  I  r  w i r r  see you in  the morn ing.

THE WTTNESS I ffr"nk you, Judge.
I

THE COURT , lrt "rrk you . A1l righr . To Ms . Liu,

Mr. Mendelsohn, Ms. !"""or.r .  we have a request. from

juror number i-O that lhe be dismissed from jury dut,y.
I

I 'm going to have the juror come in and explain his
I

reasoning for  that .  l | r r  take h is ,  h is  reason up at  the
I

bench. Al l  r ight  .  I let  '  s  go.

(eench Conference)

THE COURT , ltfri- = note was brought to my

attent ion,  and i t 's  nr ly understanding that,  you are

seeking to be r.t i..r"la from further jury duty. could

you explain to us spelc i f ical ly the reason for that?

J U R O R  N O .  t 9 t  I ' m  a s k i n g  b a s i c a l l y  i f  I  c o u l d
I

be  d ismissed or  d isquar i f ied  because,  no t  so  much by ,  i f

I  ean ' t  be  ob jec t ive  Lna fased upon what  l , ve  seen so

far,  for  l ike the defLndant,s grandstanding and

bas ica l - Iy  wast ing  t ,he ,  s ta te ,s  t ime and tha t ,  I ,  i f  ,  I  may

pre jud ice  the  o ther  j lu ro rs .

I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t  tha t  f 'm sure  tha t  based

Zimmerman, we are goi ng to adj ourn for the day and

833 2 4 1



upon the law that I r,,1ouId want to find , want, to acquit
I

the defendant 
I

THE COURT, l*.tr, obviously, i t  saddens me to

hear that statement albout your not being able to be

ob jec t ive .  Cer ta in l l  tha t ts  what  we seek  when we
I

empanel the jury 
I
I

,JUROR NO. t9t f  understand that as a lawyer, I

hate to  say i t ,  and,  lana r  don ' t  know i f  i t ,s  because of
I

my judic ia l  t ra in ing lor  what,  f  real ize that  they may

have a very negat ive 
l react ion.

THE COURT: l I f  you wouId,  p lease go and stand
I

at the rail and let n{e speak with counsel

(Juror ,rrr*UJr 10 not present. )

THE COURTT I  Us.  L iu ,  Mr .  Mend.e lsohn,  I , l -1  hear

f rom you f i rs t .  I
I

MR . MEIilDELST*r Your Honor, there seems to be

two issues here.  We leannot let  th is juror step of f  .  He

said dur ing voir  d i re l  he would be able to reach a fa i r
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edent by al lowing someone to be

react ions to the defendant.  Who

members remaining.

f ,  i f  you  can  ask  h im  aga in

act ion to  the defendant ,  he can

and  impar t i a l  ve rd i c t .
I

We set a prerc

I
removed based on theirr

knows i f  we' I l -  have Ib
I

I  th ink he,  l i
I

whether despi te his r le

i r  d i re ,  g ive  a  fa i r  and

2 4 2
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verdict  I  th ink that 's  necessary.
I

I do not think Lhat, he shoul-d be removed based.
I

f  th ink  thd t  wou ld  se t  a  te r r ib le  p recedent .

THE COLIRT: lVery weLl .

I
M S .  S A S S O W E R :  I ' d  l i k e  t o  b e  h e a r d .

THE COURT, lV"ry wel- I ,  Ms .  Sassower.
I

MS.  SASSOWE$:  A  de fendant ,  a  ju ro r ,  who
I

himself  in lsuch visceral  terms and not,  to the

that has beln presented. here today, has :

ted that he cannot evaluat.e the evidence, t,he

impart ia l

o n  t h i s .

expresges

evidence

demonstra

1

2

3

4

5

7

8

9

l-0

1 1

t 2

1 3

1,4

1 5

t 6

I 7

1 8

L 9

2 0

21-

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

fac ts ,  and I  be l ieve

forward.

tha t ' s ,  I  g ive  h im c red i t  in  coming

THE COURT: lWel l ,  let  me just  say to you before

r make a decis ion he1e. what th is should be for ar l  of

us is a beacon of  br ight  l ight  indicat ing to us what I
I

perce ive  to  be  the  j r l ry ' s  g rowing  d issa t is fac t ion  w i th

the manner in which

One of t,he

conclusion of  the c

s ease is  progress ing.

arges that f  wi l l  g ive them at the

is that  they wi l l  be the people

who determine credibi l l i ty .  And in reaching credibi l i ty ,

they ean look at any fnumber of things including the

demeanor of  the wi tndsses.

And in you! case, t ,he part ies get  to  have th is

ind icat .ed t .hat

to  the  s i t t . i ng

lawyer come forward, l*ho has previously

243
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judge that I  bel ieve the defendant is grandstanding,

shoul-d be viewed by you as an indicat ion of  how, forget

about the evidence, dr how the manner in which you
I

eomport yourself  affdets those who are to make Ehe

u l t imate  dec is ion .

So,  I  say  t .

f rom th is .  Th is  cas

d isorgan ized.  I t  ne

more expedi t iously.

I mean we d

the quest ions.  And

w i t n e s s ,  I e t ' s  g e t  t

request,  because t ,h is

should be aware that.

every ease, but i t  is

at. to you so that we aII can learn

i s  m o v i n g  t o o  s l o w l y .  I t ' s

ds  to  p roceed more  e f f i c ien t ly ,

Quest ions  need to  be  d i ree ted  w i th .

n ' t  have speeches inc luded w i th in

i ] f  there's nothing further f  rom a

hem off and move on to something

gentleman is an at.torney and he

veryone has visceral  react ions in

about the evidence not about the

e lse  I
I

Now with reg{ara to the speci f ic  request by th is

juror,  r 'm gonna havel  h im back up and |m gonna talk to

him about the oath tt l"t he took and il m going to probe

to  see whether  he  is , l  what  he ,s  hav ing  prob lem wi th  i s

her delivery or the .[r.rid"rr.".

MS .  SASSOWEf: Thank you.

" 
THE COURT: 

lAnd 
we, l l  see where we go f rom

there .  Yes ,  Mr .  uenaL lsohn?

MR. MENDELSd"*, And we would also make the

836 2 4 4
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I
I
I
I

manner in which the 
{art ies 

cond.uct themserves.
I

THE COURT: 
I Very well .

MS. LfU: tlrrrrf. you, your Honor.

T H E  C O U R T :  l T h a t , s  a l I  r i g h t .

(,Juror numbJr LO present. )

THE couRT: lFirst  of  a l r ,  ret  me thank you for

coming forward. r  a lpreciate your candor.  Let  me ask

you this.  you ment i {nea ear l ier  that  you ber ieved. that

the defendant was gralndstanding in this ease and that

you coul-dn' t  be an inpart ia l  arbi ter  of  her gui l t  or

innocence based on t tJat .

I f  you coul{  put  aside how one, s act ions might

i r r i tate you or offedd your sensibi l i t ies and

concentrate sorely on] the evidence that is presented,

that is to say,  not th.  manner of  del ivery,  rather what

is  u l t imate ly  de l i ve

believe as a lawyer

making.

as  ev idence in  th is  case,  I

understand the point  that  I 'm

act and

lawyer,

be l ieve

Put  as i -de t

address t.he

a n d a s a j

that you can

.IUROR NO. 10

THE COURT:

i s  I ' m  g o i n g

manner in which the

idence as i t  act ,ua l l_y

defendant may

c o m e s ,  d s  a

I ' m  g o i n g  t o

eons ide ra t i on

who took an oath here, do you

fair  and impart ia l?

No, Your Honor.

11 r ight .  Then what

d o ,  s i r , to give t.his further
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I
I
I

tonight  and ld l ike l for  you to do the same as werr .  r

want you to come back tomorrow, be prepared to go and

r ' l -L  render  a  dec i= iJ r  a t  tha t  t ime.

THE WITNESS{ Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: l fhank you. Very we1l .  That was

ju ror  number  782 who ls i t s  in  seat  10 ,  s i t s  in  seat  10 .
I

Okay, very wel l  I
I

(open courr ) |
I

THE COURTT 
Rn" 

addi t ional  matters?

MR. MENDET-,SdHU: Tomorrow during the

government 's  case- in - lch ie f  ,  we p lan  to  use  bo th  an  ease l -

and a te levis ion "rra l "  VeR. f  ,m just  wonder ing for

technical  purposes rhLr"  we should plaee them.

THE couRT r l that '  s a good. quest ion.  obviously,

there's only going to be one, one monitor involved
I

typical l -y.  Give us sb*e assistance here .  One TV

monitor, TV there or b.r"r here and have everyone here

move around. How lon! is the tape?

MR. MENDELSOHN: About f ive minutes.

THE COURT' fU"rO we1l.  r  rh ink rhar whar r

might do is direct tr:Lt the monitor be set up somewhere

in th is area. And thpn everyone who, arr  of  t .he,  a l l

counsel-  woul_d then move in that  d i rect ion.

f  donrt  want for  crowding the, the jury,  so

you'd have to step info the front row and sort of move
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around so that you cguld see. r ,11 probably move down

here. But, i t ,  seems 
!o 

me that that wourd be the easiest,

way to handle it, ,rrrJ"== r have some recommendations
I

otherwise.  I
I

MR. MENDELSQHN: That 's  the l0cat ion t .hat  the

government. thought would be best.

THE COTIRT: lVery wel l  .  So as a pract ical

mat . te r ,  i t t s  go ing  t have to eome through this,  th is

ais le here and your fench. r f  you have two people on i t

and can be l i f ted "nq swung around, i t  can come through.

W e ' 1 1  p l a c e  i t  h e r e .

THE CLERK: l fhe outlet is r ight here.

THE COURT: lVery well . So we have an out let .

And you've seenAnd

t h i s

E,hen counsel  wi l l  have to shi f  t .

to be

tape

I
any severe viewprship issues with regard. to this

as far as eounse[- is eoneerned..

MS. LIU: yQur Honor,  w€ are intending to

introduce this tape t f r rough a wi tness that we,re going
I

to  ca l - I  immedia te ly  a f i te r  t t s .  sassower  i s  done c ross-

examining Det,ective Zti_mmerman.

For conveniefice, should we have

fo re  cou r t  s ta r t s  t bmor row so  we  won ' t

i t  se t  up

have to take a

W h a t  w e ' 1 1  d o  i s , that would
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be, I  think that would be a reason for

we'11  f in ish  w i th  Detec t ive  Z immerman.

take a br ief  break

them stay in the j

we br ing  th is  in .

arid we may in fact

box, talk amonq

of Zimme

-  4 5  m i n u t e s .  W e

s e t u p .

THE

M S .

the play?

i t  so

stopwatch

cou ld  use?

THE COURT:

tha t  there 's  any  s top

videotape, so I  don, t

i t  o r  n o t .  S o  f  d o n '

MS . SAS

a break.  So

We wil l  then

take a break,  have

themselves whi le

May I, Your Honor?

e s .

f  do not expeet that  my eross-

n wi l l  take more than a hal f  hour

wi l l  be want ing t ,o use the video

ery  we I1 .

Is there a eapacity to slow down

There 's  capac i ty  cer t .a in ly  to  pause

eze the frame and then resume.

Rewind. Okay. And is there a

r watch with a second hand that we

e 1 1 ,  f  w i 1 I ,  f  m e a n  I r m  n o t  a w a r e

atch .  f  haven, t  seen the

know if there, s a time counter on

know how to answer that  quest ion.

Okay.

1  r i g h t .

M S .

THE

M S .

examination

SASSOWE

COURT:

)WE

ot l

IURT:

can

,ssovi

m e o

THE CO

E y o u r

M S .  S A

or sor

tha

COUR

u cal

SASS

some

THE

t y l

M S .

or

f rb

'"i,
rhF

THE COURT:
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b a c k  t o  c o u r t  f o r  t r i a l  a t  9 : o o  a . m . ,  c o u r t r o o m  2 L g .  r f

you  fa i l  to  appear  "J  tha t  da te ,  |ou , re  sub jec t  to  a

$l- ,ooo f ine or  orr .  " f " r  in ja i l  or  borh just  s imply for

not returning. oo ylu understand?

THE COURT:

THE CLERK:

MS.  SASSOWE

( Thereupon,

Very wel l .  See you tomorrow.

Ma'am, I  need you to sign, return

Y e s .

proceed ings  conc luded.  a t  5 :00

p . m .  )
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